Agenda

GRAND RABIDS-KENT COUNTY

|

ONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONYENTION, SHOW & $PORTE FACILITIES

m

Board of Directors

Friday, June 3, 2011

Following CAA Operations Committee Meeting
Kent County Commission Chambers
300 Monroe, NW - Grand Rapids, Ml

1. Call to Order

2. Recognition/introduction of SMG Box Office Staff

Steven R. Heacock

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting Action
4. Committee Reports
A. Operations Committee
B. Finance Committee
g, FY 2012 Budgets Action
A. DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena® Operating Budgets
B. Consolidated CAA Operating/Capital Budgets
6. 2012-2016 DeVos Place® Rate Sheets Action
7. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars Information
8. Public Comment
9. Adjournment. Next Meeting Date: Friday, August 5, 2011. There is no July meeting.

Have a Happy & Safe Summer!



SMG Box Office Recap
March 8 - 21, 2011

Date Show
8-Mar James Taylor

9-Mar Dark

10-Mar Disney On lce
LF - Outside Events

11-Mar Disney On Ice
Symphony
Women's Expo/Bridal Show
LF - Qutside

12-Mar Disney On lce
Symphony
Women's Expo/Bridal Show
LF - Outside

13-Mar Disney On lce
Women's Expo/Bridal Show
LF - Outside
LF - Bill Cosby

14-Mar LF - Hen Sapp Out of the Box Comedy
LF - Outside

15-Mar LF - Betty White Dinner
LF - Betty White Simulcast
LF - Outside

16-Mar Stephen Lynch
LF - Outside

17-Mar Ultimate Sport Show
Sugarland
LF - Outside

18-Mar Ultimate Sport Show
Symphony
Grand Rapids Griffins
LF - Outside

19-Mar Ultimate Sport Show
Symphony
Grand Rapids Griffins
LF - Outside

20-Mar Ultimate Sport Show
Symphony
Grand Rapids Griffins
LF - Gariel Iglasius
LF - Outside

21-Mar Joe Bonamassa

Venue
DeVos Performance Hall

Van Andel Arena
Various

Van Ande! Arena

DeVos Performance Hall
DeVos Place

Various

Van Andel Arena

DeVos Performance Hall
DeVos Place

Various

Van Andel Arena

DeVos Place

Various

DeVos Performance Hall

DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Place
DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Place
Van Andel Arena
Various

DeVos Place

DeVos Performance Hall
Van Andel Arena
Various

DeVos Place

DeVos Performance Hall
Van Andel Arena
Various

DeVos Place

DeVos Performance Hall
Van Andel Arena

DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Performance Hall

Venues
Total Laughfest Venues 17
New to Ticketmaster 12
Events
Laughfest Events - Outside 116
Laughfest Events - SMG/CAA 8
Non-Laughfest Events 25
Total Performances/Event Days 149
Sales Totals
Total Tickets Sold 125,000
Total Gross Ticket Sales 2,750,000
On-Sales
Kenny Chesney 3/11/2011
Josh Groban 3/19/2011
Jerry Seinfeld 3/25/2011



SMG Box Office Recap
March 8 - 21, 2011

Date Show
8-Mar James Taylor

9-Mar Dark

10-Mar Disney On Ice
LF - Outside Events

11-Mar Disney On Ice
Symphony
Women's Expo/Bridal Show
LF - Outside

12-Mar Disney On Ice
Symphony
Women's Expo/Bridal Show
LF - Outside

13-Mar Disney On Ice
Women's Expo/Bridal Show
LF - Outside
LF - Bill Cosby

14-Mar LF - Hen Sapp Out of the Box Comedy
LF - Outside

15-Mar LF - Betty White Dinner
LF - Betty White Simulcast
LF - Qutside

16-Mar Stephen Lynch
LF - Outside

17-Mar Ultimate Sport Show
Sugarland
LF - Outside

18-Mar Ultimate Sport Show
Symphony
Grand Rapids Griffins
LF - Outside

19-Mar Ultimate Sport Show
Symphony
Grand Rapids Griffins
LF - Outside

20-Mar Ultimate Sport Show
Symphony
Grand Rapids Griffins
LF - Gariel lglasius
LF - Outside

21-Mar Joe Bonamassa

Venue
DeVos Performance Hall

Van Andel Arena
Various

Van Ande! Arena

DeVos Performance Hall
DeVos Place

Various

Van Andel Arena

DeVos Performance Hall
DeVos Place

Various

Van Andel Arena

DeVos Place

Various

DeVos Performance Hall

DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Place
DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Place
Van Andel Arena
Various

DeVos Place

DeVos Performance Hall
Van Andel Arena
Various

DeVos Place

DeVos Performance Hall
Van Andel Arena
Various

DeVos Place

DeVos Performance Hall
Van Andel Arena

DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Performance Hall

Venues
Total Laughfest Venues 17
New to Ticketmaster 12
Events
Laughfest Events - Outside 116
Laughfest Events - SMG/CAA 8
Non-Laughfest Events 25
Total Performances/Event Days 149
Sales Totals
Total Tickets Sold 125,000
Total Gross Ticket Sales 2,750,000
On-Sales
Kenny Chesney 3/11/2011
Josh Groban 3/19/2011
Jerry Seinfeld 3/25/2011



SMG Box Office Recap
March 8 - 21, 2011

Date Show
8-Mar James Taylor

9-Mar Dark

10-Mar Disney On Ice
LF - Outside Events

11-Mar Disney On Ice
Symphony
Women's Expo/Bridal Show
LF - Outside

12-Mar Disney On Ice
Symphony
Women's Expo/Bridal Show
LF - Outside

13-Mar Disney On Ice
Women's Expo/Bridal Show
LF - Qutside
LF - Bill Cosby

14-Mar LF - Hen Sapp Out of the Box Comedy
LF - Outside

15-Mar LF - Betty White Dinner
LF - Betty White Simulcast
LF - Outside

16-Mar Stephen Lynch
LF - Outside

17-Mar Ultimate Sport Show
Sugarland
LF - Outside

18-Mar Ultimate Sport Show
Symphony
Grand Rapids Griffins
LF - Outside

18-Mar Ultimate Sport Show
Symphony
Grand Rapids Griffins
LF - Outside

20-Mar Uitimate Sport Show
Symphony
Grand Rapids Griffins
LF - Gariel Iglasius
LF - Outside

21-Mar Joe Bonamassa

Venue
DeVos Performance Hall

Van Andel Arena
Various

Van Andel Arena

DeVos Performance Hall
DeVos Place

Various

Van Andel Arena

DeVos Performance Hall
DeVos Place

Various

Van Andel Arena

DeVos Place

Various

DeVos Performance Hall

DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Place
DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Place
Van Andel Arena
Various

DeVos Place

DeVos Performance Hall
Van Andel Arena
Various

DeVos Place

DeVos Performance Hall
Van Andel Arena
Various

DeVos Place

DeVos Performance Hall
Van Andel Arena

DeVos Performance Hall
Various

DeVos Performance Hall

Venues
Total Laughfest Venues 17
New to Ticketmaster 12
Events
Laughfest Events - Outside 116
Laughfest Events - SMG/CAA 8
Non-Laughfest Events 25
Total Performances/Event Days 149
Sales Totals
Total Tickets Sold 125,000
Total Gross Ticket Sales 2,750,000
On-Sales
Kenny Chesney 3/11/2011
Josh Groban 3/19/2011
Jerry Seinfeld 3/25/2011



Item 3

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Friday, May 5, 2011

1. Call to Order

Steve Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. Susan Waddell recorded the
meeting minutes in the absence of Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs. Chair Heacock rearranged the
agenda by moving up items 4 and 5.

Attendance

Steve Heacock, Chair
Lew Chamberlin

Joe Tomaselli

Floyd Wilson, Jr.

Members Present:

Members Absent: George Heartwell
Birgit Klohs
Gary Mclnerney
Staff/Others: Amy Carrigan Savor ... SMG Food & Beverage
David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Tim Gortsema Grand Rapids Griffins
George Helmstead Experience Grand Rapids
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Doug Small Experience Grand Rapids
Eddie Tadlock SMG
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White CAA

Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Mr. Tomaselli, supported by Mr. Wilson, moved to approve the Minutes of the April 1, 2011,
meeting of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. The motion carried
unanimously.

3. Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of Management Agreement with SMG

Attorney Dick Wendt stated that the CAA retained the professional services of consultant Susan Seger,
who has negotiated hundreds of management agreements. And the consultant, after comprehensive
review, concluded that the terms were very reasonable and within industry norms.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 5, 2011 -2

Attorney Wendt reviewed a comparison of key provisions between the existing and proposed
management agreements between the CAA and SMG.

Boardmember Tomaselli, supported by Boardmember Wilson, moved the adoption of the following
resolution:

WHEREAS, the current Management Agreement, as amended between the Grand Rapids-Kent
County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), and SMG dated as of July 1, 2006, terminates on June
30, 2011; and

WHEREAS, the CAA and SMG have negotiated a new Management Agreement to be dated and
effective July 1, 2011 (the "Management Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the CAA Board desires to approve and authorize the execution of the Management
Agreement substantially in the form presented at this meeting.

RESOLVED:

1l That the Management Agreement substantially in the form presented at this meeting is
hereby approved with such modifications not materially adverse to the CAA approved as
to content by the CAA Chairman and as to form by the CAA’s legal counsel and the
Chairman is authorized and directed to execute the approved Management Agreement
Jor and on behalf of the CAA.

2. That all resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the same
are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

Motion approved unanimously.
Mr. Wendt stated that he is working with SMG on a letter agreement that would change the relationship
of Rich MacKeigan as a CAA employee. Under the letter agreement, the CAA would engage SMG for

Rich to provide services.

4. Resolution Approving and Authorizing Execution of Food and
Beverage Services Agreement with SMG Food and Beverage LLC

Attorney Dick Wendt stated that the CAA retained the professional services of consultant Chris Bigelow,
who assisted and advised regarding the original food and beverage agreement with SMGFB. And the
consultant, after comprehensive review, concluded that the terms were very reasonable and within
industry norms. Attorney Wendt reviewed a comparison of key provisions between the existing and
proposed food and beverage service agreements between the CAA and SMG Food and Beverage LLC.

Boardmember Tomaselli, supported by Boardmember Wilson, moved the adoption of the following
resolution:

WHEREAS, the current Food and Beverage Services Agreement, as amended, between the
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), and SMG Food and Beverage, LLC
dated as of July 1, 2006, terminates on June 30, 2011; and

WHEREAS, the CAA and SMG have negotiated a new Food and Beverage Services Agreement
to be dated and effective July 1, 2011 (the "F&B Agreement”); and



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
May 5, 2011 -3

WHEREAS, the CAA Board desires to approve and authorize the execution of the F&B
Agreement substantially in the form presented at this meeting.

RESOLVED:

1. That the F&B Agreement substantially in the form presented at this meeting is hereby
approved with such modifications not materially adverse to the CAA approved as to content by the CAA
Chairman and as to form by the CAA’s legal counsel and the Chairman is authorized and directed to
execute the approved F&B Agreement for and on behalf of the CAA.

2. That all resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the same
are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

Resolution approved unanimously.

5. Committee Reports

A. Finance Committee

Motion: Mr. Tomaselli, supported by Mr. Wilson, moved to approve: (i) the SMG Financial Statements
Jor DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended March 31, 2011; (ii) the CAA
Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2011; and the Third Quarter Consolidated
Financial Statement. After review and discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

The Finance Committee earlier reviewed the proposed FY 2012 Budgets and DeVos Place® Rate Sheets
in detail and will hold a short meeting on Friday, June 3, 2011, to take formal action on these items.

B. DeVos Place® Parking Operation Agreement

Boardmember Tomaselli, supported by Boardmember Wilson, moved the adoption of the following
resolution:

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA") controls
the operation of DeVos Place, a performing arts/convention/entertainment facility (the “Convention
Center”) including 690 parking spaces located in the lower level of the Convention Center (the “Parking
Spaces”); and

WHEREAS, the CAA and the City of Grand Rapids (the “City”) previously entered into a
Parking Operation Agreement dated July 1, 2008, related to the Parking Spaces which expires June 30,
2011; and

WHEREAS, the CAA and the City desire to continue their relationship with respect to the
Parking Spaces for a three year term beginning July 1, 2011, and ending June 30, 2014, and have agreed
to enter into a new Parking Operation Agreement (the "Agreement”) setting forth the terms and
conditions for the operation of the Parking Spaces.

RESOLVED:

1 That the Agreement substantially in the form presented at this meeting with such minor
deviations as are not materially adverse to the CAA and approved as to content by the CAA Chairman
and as to form by the CAA's counsel is approved.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting

May 5,2011 - 4

2. That the Chairman of the CAA is authorized and directed to execute the Agreement for
and on behalf of the City.

3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the same are

hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.
Resolution adopted unanimously.

C. Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin stated that the proposed FY 2012 budgets, and in particular the capital budget, will be
presented to the Operations Committee on June 3.

Mr. Helmstead provided an overview of the CVB’s recent sales activities, marketing efforts, and major
bid presentations.

6. SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at Van Andel Arena®
and DeVos Place®.

7. Public Comment

None.

8. Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Friday, June 3, 2011, in the Kent County Commission
Chambers, Kent County Administration Building, 300 Monroe Avenue, NW, immediately following the
CAA Finance and Operation Committee meetings.

9, Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:30 a.m.

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary



DE VOS PLACE

OPERATING BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2012

***[NCLUDES MARCH ROLLING FORECAST***

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Hank Abate

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

SM&>

An SMG Managed Facllity




DeVos Place
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

Lead Income Statement

Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Income
Service Expenses
Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F & B Concessions
F & B Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Telephone/Long Distance
Electrical Services
Audio Visual
Internet Services
Equipment Rental
Total Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates (Per Event)
Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income
Other Operating Income
Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Employee Salaries and Wages
Benefits
Less: Event Labor Allocations
Net Employee Wages and Benefits
Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations
Repair & Maintenance
Supplies
Insurance
Utilities
SMG Management Fees
Total Operating Expenses

Net Income (Loss) From Operations

Other Income (Expenses)

Net Income After Other Income (Expenses)

Budget - DeVos Place - FY 2012

Prior Year Variance Percentage Variance Percentage
FY 2011 More Change FY 2010 More Change
FY 2012 Rolling / Increase Audited / Increase

Budget Forecast (Less) (Decrease) (Less) (Decrease)
2,571,530 2,710,042 (132,512) -4.89% 2,492,062 85,468 3.43%
1,943,940 1,890,329 53,611 2.84% 2,168,236 (224,296) -10.34%
(1,990,300)  (2,037,064) 46,764 -2.30% (2,212,444) 222,144 -10.04%
2,531,170 2,563,307 (32,137) -1.25% 2,447,854 83,316 3.40%
127,931 154,520 (26,589) -17.21% 144,379 (16,448) -11.39%
554,520 577,987 (23,467) -4.06% 541,299 13,221 2.44%
15,100 13,549 1,551 11.45% 14,973 127 0.85%
266,815 284,156 (17,341) -6.10% 237,495 29,320 12.35%
21,500 18,225 3,275 17.97% 4,395 17,105 389.19%
414,600 429,571 (14,971) -3.49% 411,817 2,783 0.68%
271,200 254,321 22,879 9.00% 290,952 (13,752) -4.73%
44,000 50,002 (6,002) -12.00% 49,831 (5,831) -11.70%
168,600 170,075 (1,475) -0.87% 148,271 20,329 13.71%
1,890,266 1,952,406 (62,140) -3.18% 1,843,412 46,854 2.54%
163,245 142,000 21,245 14.96% 139,236 24,009 17.24%
163,245 142,000 21,245 14.96% 139,236 24,009 17.24%
4,584,681 4,657,713 (73,032) -1.57% 4,430,502 154,179 3.48%
55,000 50,992 4,008 7.86% 45311 9,689 21.38%
4,639,681 4,708,705 (69,024) -1.47% 4,475,813 163,868 3.66%
2,778,139 2,781,569 3,430 0.12% 2,723,993 (54,146) -1.99%
720,240 789,503 69,263 8.77% 738,508 18,268 247%
(1,476,327)  (1,551,487) (75,160) 4.84% (1,507,507) (31,180) 2.07%
2,022,052 2,019,585 (2,467) -0.12% 1,954,994 (67,058) -3.43%
280,080 293,325 13,245 4.52% 300,870 20,790 6.91%
341,700 338,344 (3,356) -0.99% 288,747 (52,953) -18.34%
117,741 92,217 (25,524) -27.68% 107,023 (10,718) -10.01%
503,065 423,765 (79,300) -18.71% 471,784 (31,281) -6.63%
229,000 177,232 (51,768) -29.21% 168,882 (60,118) -35.60%
206,301 191,147 (15,154) -1.93% 233,403 27,102 11.61%
1,553,400 1,515,060 (38,340) -2.53% 1,364,395 (189,005) -13.85%
161,845 160,417 (1,428) -0.89% 158,672 (3,173) -2.00%
5,415,184 5,211,092 (204,092) -3.92% 5,048,770 (366,414) -1.26%
(775,503) (502,387) (273,116) 54.36% (572,957) (202,546) 35.35%
(775,503) (502,387) (273,116) 54.36% (572,957) (202,546) 35.35%

Lead Income Statement Compare

5/23/2011, 9:58 AM



DeVos Place
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012
Lead Income Statement

Prior Year Variance
FY 2011 More
7 Rolling /
i Total Forecast (Less)
Gross Services Billed
Advertising 30,045 29,216 829
Changeover 10,440 10,153 287
Stagehands 1,133,762 1,161,628 (27,866)
Security 228,149 197,217 30,932
Ushers/Ticket Takers 147,219 143,159 4,060
Box Office - Labor 18,733 18,217 516
Box Office - Ticketing Services 194,475 154,617 39,858
Utilities 9,864 9,592 272
City/Police/Fire 15,974 15,534 440
EMT's 34,400 33,452 948
Cleaning 33,720 32,790 930
Insurance 4971 4,834 137
Group Sales Commission 1,900 1,848 52
Telephone 3,144 3,057 87
Other Production 77,143 75,016 2,127
Total Services Billed 1,943,940 1,890,329 53,609
Gross Services Expense
Advertising 49,283 50,440 (1,157)
Stagehands 1,023,313 1,047,356 (24,043)
Security 295,985 302,940 (6,955)
Ushers/Ticket Takers 94,162 96,375 (2,213)
Box Office - Labor 23,042 23,583 (541)
Box Office - Ticketing Services 42,965 43,974 (1,009)
City/Police/Fire 10,760 11,013 (253)
EMT's 29,343 30,032 (689)
Cleaning 312,158 319,492 (7,334)
Insurance 4,132 4,229 97)
Group Sales Commission 1,574 1,611 37
Telephone 598 612 (14)
Other Production 102,986 105,406 (2,420)
Total Services Expense 1,990,300 2,037,064 (46,762)
Total Service Income (Loss) (46,360) (146,735) 100,371




SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary Report
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

Events/Days

Event Type FY 2012 FY 2011 Attendance Rent Service Ancillary Total FY 2011 Variance
Convention/Trade Shows 125 134 145,000 980,000 (70,000) 953,000 1,863,000 1,794,894 68,106
Consumer/Gated Shows 50 50 140,000 653,000 (16,000) 285,225 922,225 961,256 (39,031)
Banquets 36 37 23,400 85,680 (19,500) 197,280 263,460 268,513 (5,053)
Meetings 80 85 24,000 175,000 (9,000) 163,850 329,850 326,054 3,796
Other 40 45 18,000 155,000 (20,000) 189,855 324,855 325,309 (454)
Devos Performance Hall 20 20 25,000 120,000 - 87,500 207,500 269,038 (61,538)
Arts Groups 126 137 137,600 408,850 88,140 176,801 673,791 712,649 (38,858)
GRAND TOTALS 477 508 513,000 2,577,530 (46,360) 2,053,511 4,584,681 4,657,713 (73,032)



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2011
Estimate Estimate Estimate Forecast
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,071,221 (775,503) 295,718 308,552
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,071,221 (775,503) (404,282) (391,448)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 161,845 161,845 323,690 320,834
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,996,443 4,639,681 9,636,124 9,328,832
Benchmark Revenue 4,850,000 4,250,000 9,100,000 9,000,000
Revenue Excess 146,443 389,681 536,124 328,832
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 161,845 161,845 323,690 320,834

** [ncentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.

Note:
SMG shall receive 100% of the incentive fee as calculated above is $750,000 combined excess revenue
above expenses is achieved. Shall receive 75% if $700,000 is achieved.



SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Full Time Employee Summary & Allocation

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

F/Y 2011 F/Y 2012

Position VAA DVP Total VAA DVP Total Change
General Manager 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Administrative Assistant 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Director of Finance 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Accounting Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Accounting Support 1.50 1.50 3.00 1.50 1.50 3.00 -
Box Office Manager 0.80 0.20 1.00 0.80 0.20 1.00 -
Assistant Box Office Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2,00 -
Premium Seat/Suite 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Box Office Support 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Director of Marketing 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Marketing Manager 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Marketing Support 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Group Sales Manager 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Assistant General Manager - Ops 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Director of Facilities 0.33 0.67 1.00 0.33 0.67 1.00 -
Maintenance Assistant 0.33 0.67 1.00 0.33 0.67 1.00 -
Maintenance Support 4.00 7.00 11.00 4.00 6.00 10.00 (1.00)
Operations Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Operations Support 9.00 8.00 17.00 9.00 8.00 17.00 -
MISAT 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Assistant General Manager - Sales - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Sales - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Sales Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Sales Support - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Event Services - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Event Coordinators 2.00 4.00 6.00 1.00 4.00 5.00 (1.00)
House Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Receiptionist/Admin Support 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Total 2946  35.54 65.00 2846 34.54 63.00 (2.00)



Iltem 5.A.

VAN ANDEL

VAN ANDEL ARENA

OPERATING BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2012

#***[NCLUDES MARCH ROLLING FORECAST***

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Hank Abate

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



Van Andel Arena

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

Lead Income Statement

Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Income
Service Expenses
Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F & B Concessions
F & B Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Other Ancillary
Total Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates (Per Event)
Total Other Event Income
Total Event Income
Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses

Employee Salaries and Wages

Benefits

Less: Event Labor Allocations
Net Employee Wages and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair & Maintenance
Supplies

Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees
Total Operating Expenses

Net Income (Loss) From Operations

Other Income (Expenses)

Net Income After Other Income (Expenses)

Budget - Van Andel Arena - FY 2012

Prior Year Variance Percentage | Prior Year Variance Percentage
FY 2011 More Change FY 2010 More Change
FY 2012 Rolling / Increase / Increase

Budget Forecast (Less) (Decrease) Audited (Less) (Decrease)
1,705,703 1,498,929 206,774 13.79% 1,829,252 (123,549) -6.75%
1,259,835 1,333,324 (73,489) -5.51% 1,865,280 (605,445) -32.46%
(1,706,090) (1,835,477) 129,387 -7.05% (2,217,841) 511,751 -23.07%
1,259,448 996,776 262,672 26.35% 1,476,691 (217,243) -14.71%
916,306 986,011 (69,705) -7.07% 1,104,694 (188,388) -17.05%
64,778 83,081 (18,303) -22.03% 87,813 (23,035) -26.23%
89,671 98,689 (9,018) -9.14% 101,664 (11,993) -11.80%
- 1,055 (1,055) -100.00% 1,065 (1,065) -100.00%
30,800 30,776 24 0.08% 33,620 (2,820) -8.39%
1,101,555 1,199,612 (98,057) -8.17% 1,328,856 (227,301) -17.11%
426,990 385,500 41,490 10.76% 380,498 46,492 12.22%
426,990 385,500 41,490 10.76% 380,498 46,492 12.22%
2,787,993 2,581,888 206,105 7.98% 3,186,045 (398,052) -12.49%
2,208,450 2,038,239 170,211 8.35% 2,116,071 92,379 4.37%
4,996,443 4,620,127 376,316 8.15% 5,302,116 (305,673) -5.771%
1,931,080 1,869,643 (61,437) -3.29% 1,923,507 (7,573) -0.39%
540,414 497,036 (43,378) -8.73% 491,236 (49,178) -10.01%
(873,667) (812,657) 61,010 -1.51% (811,330) 62,337 -7.68%
1,597,827 1,554,022 (43,805) -2.82% 1,603,413 5,586 0.35%
265,680 249,753 (15,927) -6.38% 236,105 (29,575) -12.53%
333,100 344,755 11,655 3.38% 328,126 (4,974) -1.52%
56,900 45,343 (11,557) -25.49% 39,819 (17,081) -42.90%
211,185 176,165 (35,020) -19.88% 198,384 (12,801) -6.45%
210,600 187,258 (23,342) -12.47% 155,769 (54,831) -35.20%
130,085 132,392 2,307 1.74% 160,393 30,308 18.90%
958,000 959,083 1,083 0.11% 932,113 (25,887) -2.78%
161,845 160,417 (1,428) -0.89% 158,672 (3,173) -2.00%
3,925,222 3,809,188 (116,034) -3.05% 3,812,794 (112,428) -2.95%
1,071,221 810,939 260,282 32.10% 1,489,322 (418,101) -28.07%
1,071,221 810,939 260,282 32.10% 1,489,322 (418,101) -28.07%

Lead Income Statement Compare

5/23/2011, 9:59 AM



Van Andel Arena

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

Summary of Service Income

Gross Services Billed
Advertising
Labor
Changeover
Stagehands
Security
Ushers/Ticket Takers
Box Office - Labor
Box Office - Ticket Service
City/Police/Fire
EMT's
Cleaning
Group Sales Commission
Telephone
Other Production
Total Service Income Billed

Gross Services Expense
Advertising
Labor
Contracted Changeover
Stagehands
Contracted Security

Contracted Ushers/Ticket Takers

Box Office Labor

Contracted Ticketing Service

City/Police/Fire

Contracted EMT's

Contracted Cleaning

Group Sales Commission

Allocated Telephone

Other Production Expense
Total Services Expense

Total Service Income (Loss)

Prior Year Variance
FY 2011 More
Rolling /
Il Total Forecast (Less)
327,881 347,007 (104,155)
10,617 11,236 (2,696)
73,959 78,273 (19,250)
396,024 419,125 (105,879)
60,905 64,458 (15,705)
53,458 56,577 (12,613)
4,441 4,700 (797)
63,034 66,711 (18,445)
6,127 6,484 (1,783)
9,440 9,990 (2,786)
56,176 59,453 (12,058)
16,086 17,024 (5,600)
9,596 10,156 (2,841)
172,092 182,130 (73,011)
1,259,835 1,333,324 (377,618)
317,780 341,880 (24,100)
7,671 8,252 (581)
120,035 129,139 (9,104)
374,907 403,339 (28,432)
148,275 159,520 (11,245)
132,858 142,933 (10,075)
3,018 3,247 (229)
50,853 54,710 (3,857)
12,579 13,533 (954)
18,195 19,575 (1,380)
126,249 135,824 (9,575)
5,917 6,365 (448)
2,554 2,748 (194)
385,200 414,413 (29,213)
1,706,090 1,835,477 (129,387)
(446,255 (502,153) _ (248,231)




SMG Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary Report
For Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

Events/Days

Event Type FY 2012 FY 2011 Attendance Rent Service Ancillary Total FY 2011 Variance
Family Shows 22 21 61,500 224,800 (112,931) 100,916 212,785 197,649 15,136
Sports 9 10 40,000 147,900 (57,921) 136,676 226,655 386,217 (159,562)
Concerts 21 16 181,500 816,503 55,800 779,223 1,651,526 1,049,488 602,038
Griffins 38 40 224,200 388,000 (301,920) 453,440 539,520 599,618 (60,098)
Other 10 17 35,000 128,500 (29,283) 58,290 157,507 348,916 (191,409)
GRAND TOTALS 100 104 542,200 1,705,703 (446,255) 1,528,545 2,787,993 2,581,888 206,105



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2011

Estimate Estimate Estimate Forecast
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,071,221 (775,503) 295,718 308,552
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,071,221 (775,503) (404,282) (391,448)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 161,845 161,845 323,690 320,834
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,996,443 4,639,681 9,636,124 9,328,832
Benchmark Revenue 4,850,000 4,250,000 9,100,000 9,000,000
Revenue Excess 146,443 389,681 536,124 328,832
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 161,845 161,845 323,690 320,834

** [ncentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.

Note:
SMG shall receive 100% of the incentive fee as calculated above is $750,000 combined excess revenue
above expenses is achieved. Shall receive 75% if $700,000 is achieved.



SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Full Time Employee Summary & Allocation

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,2012

F/Y 2011 F/Y 2012
Position VAA DVP Total VAA DVP Total Change
General Manager 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Administrative Assistant 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Director of Finance 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Accounting Manager 1.00 1.00 2,00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Accounting Support 1.50 1.50 3.00 1.50 1.50 3.00 -
Box Office Manager 0.80 0.20 1.00 0.80 0.20 1.00 -
Assistant Box Office Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Premium Seat/Suite 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Box Office Support 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Director of Marketing 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Marketing Manager 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Marketing Support 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Group Sales Manager 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Assistant General Manager - Ops 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Director of Facilities 0.33 0.67 1.00 0.33 0.67 1.00 -
Maintenance Assistant 0.33 0.67 1.00 0.33 0.67 1.00 -
Maintenance Support 4.00 7.00 11.00 4.00 6.00 10.00 (1.00)
Operations Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Operations Support 9.00 8.00 17.00 9.00 8.00 17.00 -
MISAT 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Assistant General Manager - Sales - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Sales - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Sales Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Sales Support - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Event Services - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Event Coordinators 2.00 4.00 6.00 1.00 4.00 5.00 (1.00)
House Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Receiptionist/Admin Support 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Total 2946  35.54 65.00 2846  34.54 63.00 (2.00)



To:

From:

Date:

Re:

Item 5.B.

-~

’

GRAND RABIDS-KENT COUNTY

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CCNVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
Grand Rapids — Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority
Robert J. White
May 26, 2011
Convention/Arena Authority (CAA)

FY 2012 Budget Request
Updates to Memorandum Dated May 3, 2011

On May 5, the CAA Finance Committee reviewed a preliminary draft of the consolidated Fiscal Year
2012 budget request. It has forecast “estimated” revenues totaling $10,992,124 with an operating/capital
budget request of $11,277,593. The estimated draw on fund balance amounted to $285,469.

In the interim, the Fiscal Year 2011 estimates and Fiscal Year 2012 budget recommendations have been
amended in the following manner:

e Table B -

e Table B -

o Table B -

Reduce Van Andel parking revenue estimate by $30,000. On May 24, the City
Commission adopted Fiscal Year 2012 event and monthly parking rates reduced
from levels originally recommended in April.

Add a capital project titled “Escalator Safety Strips” in the amount of $25,000.
Increase the Fiscal Year 2011 Miscellaneous Revenue estimate by $250,000 to reflect a

capital contribution to be made by SMG. This contribution is required under Section 6
of the Food and Beverage Agreement approved on May 5.

As a result of these changes, the operating deficit for Fiscal Year 2012 has been increased from $285,469
to $340,469. The overall projected fund balance (at 6/30/2012) was increased by a net $195,000.

It is the staff recommendation to adopt the Fiscal Year 2012 budget as originally recommended with the
modifications as noted above. This budget will take effect on July 1, 2011.



GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, COCNVENTION, SHOW & SPORTE FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: Grand Rapids — Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority
From: Robert J. White
Date: May 3, 2011 (updated 5/27/11)
Re: Convention/Arena Authority (CAA)

Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Request

The attached material summarizes a requested CAA Administrative Operating Budget and
Consolidated Income Statement for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2011 (Fiscal Year 2012).
The format of the report provides the Committee with an overview of Fiscal Year 2010 actual,
Fiscal Year 2011 estimate, and Fiscal Year 2012 preliminary recommendations. Preliminary
Finance Committee review will be held on May 6th with final Board review scheduled for June
3rd.

Table A provides a summary of the facility manager (SMG) budget documents submitted under
separate cover. Based on SMG’s most recent “budget roll,” the current year forecast has been
updated to a net operating income balance of $308,552. Funding, requested for FY 2012, would
generate a net operating income of $245,718.

The Fiscal Year 2012 consolidated income statement (Table C) forecasts a net operating income
totaling $379,531. This income will be applied to finance, in part, a capital outlay request
totaling $926,000. The balance of the funds requested will be supported by interest earnings and
a drawdown from the capital reserve account.

Table B provides a summary of the CAA administrative budget. Revenues in this account
include regularly scheduled transfers from the facility manager, parking, interest and other
miscellaneous contributions to the organization. Expenditures from this account include
provision for utilities, capital repair/replacement/improvement (as defined in the SMG
management contract), parking management fees, landscape plantings, and other administrative
expenses. Table B-1, attached hereto, provides additional details concerning utility and
miscellaneous administrative expenditure accounts.



On the basis of these initial budgetary estimates, it is expected that the CAA will close its Fiscal
Year 2011 activities with a “fund balance” approximating $22 million. This would include a
recommended minimum operating reserve balance of $6 million and a capital
repair/replacement/improvement reserve of $16 million.

Prior fiscal year budget recommendations included a Table D entitled “Capital
Repair/Replacement/Improvement Reserve — Projection of Receipts, Disbursements and
Balances.” The table, last prepared as a part of the Fiscal Year 2009 budget, forecasted capital
requirements of approximately $1 million per annum during the period of Fiscal Year 2010
through Fiscal Year 2014, inclusive, rising to an annual level of approximately $3 million per
annum for the following five fiscal years. Allowing for this level of capital requirements, the
forecast identified a Fund Balance of $13 million at June 30, 2019. Table D has not been
updated as part of this Fiscal Year 2012 budget request. Funding for an “Arena Long-Term
Capital Study” (see Administrative/Other) was approved as a part of the FY 2011 budget, to
provide additional assistance in updating the forecast.

Table D has been included along with the original Fiscal Year 2012 budget materials. This
report provides a “Budget Summary by Facility/Other” formatted report. It organizes revenues
and expenses in three activity areas including Van Andel Arena®, DeVos Place® Convention
Center, and other. This report provides all of the same information contained in Table C, but
also allows the reader to view the overall operations of each facility incorporating therein the
revenues generated by the parking facilities attached or adjacent to the buildings.

Rich MacKeigan, Chris Machuta, Sue Waddell, and I participated in preparation of the attached
recommended budget. We would expect to present this to the Finance Committee, at its May
meeting, and be prepared to answer any additional questions which may arise from a review of
this material.

Attachments: FY 2012 Recommended Budget



Table A
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
SMG Facilities Budget
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2010 - 2012

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012
Actual Budget Estimate Recommendation
Van Andel Arena
Operating - Revenues $ 5,302,116 $ 5,136,171 $ 4,620,127 $ 4,996,443
- Expenses - Facilities (3,654,125) (3,767,884) (3,648,771) (3,763,377
- Base Management Fees (158,672) (158,672) (160,417) (161,845)
Net Operating Income $ 1,489,319 $ 1,209,615 $ 810,939 $ 1,071,221
DeVos Place
Operating - Revenues $ 4,475,813 $ 4,507,596 $ 4,708,705 $ 4,639,681
- Expenses - Facilities (4,890,100) (5,059,868) (5,050,675) (5,253,339)
- Base Management Fees (158,672) (158,671) (160,417) (161,845)
Net Operating Loss $ (572,959) $ (710,943) $ (502,387) $ (775,503)
Net Available to CAA:

Van Andel Arena $ 1,489,319 $ 1,209,615 $ 810,939 $ 1,071,221
DeVos Place (572,959) (710,943) (502,387) (775,503)
Less - SMQG Incentive (238,379) - - -

- DeVos Parking Maintenance - (10,000) 0 (50,000)
$ 677,981 $ 488,672 $ 308,552 $ 245,718




Table B
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Administrative - Operating / Capital Replacement Budget

FY 2012 Recommendation
FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012
Actual Budget Estimate Recommendation
Revenues:

Facility Operations $ 677981 § 488672 $§ 308,552 $ 245,718
Utility Reimbursement 2,141,458 2,197,800 2,316,143 2,349,600
Transfers from SMG 2,819,439 2,686,472 2,624,695 2,595,318
DeVos Place Parking 780,867 857,613 805,000 930,000
VanAndel Parking 123,112 125,003 144,452 160,000
Interest 322,422 435,000 210,000 206,000 @
Miscellaneous 95,217 30,000 280,000 ® 30,000 ©

Total Revenues 4,141,057 4,134,088 4,064,147 3,921,318

Expenditures:

Utilities 2,141,458 2,197,800 2,316,143 2,349,600 ©@
Other Operating 270,392 417,842 373,081 391,579 ©
Administration/Other 426,123 549,984 538,642 594,608
Capital-Repair 279,028 - - -
Capital 415,117 4,085,000 3,557,841 926,000

Total Expenditures 3,532,118 7,250,626 6,785,707 4,261,787

Net Excess (Deficit) $ 608,939 §(3,116,538) $ (2,721,560) $ (340,469)

Notes: See Following



Notes:

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Administrative - Operating / Capital Replacement Budget

Table B-1

FY 2012 Recommendation

MpeVos Place Parking Rates:

30 Minutes

Daily Maximum

Event

Monthly -Public
-Reserved Premium
-County/SMG (O+M)

Van Andel Arena Parking Rates:

(2)

(3)

4)

Event
Non-Event Coin Unit
Monthly -Public

$20.6 million (1/31/11 pool balance) in invested funds at 1%.

Wine & Food Festival - $16,000 and other Miscellaneous.

FY 2011 Carryover Projects:
Theater Shell Upgrade

FY 2012 Eligible Projects:

Timing/Scoring Function/Displays

SW Elevator Drive

Portable Radio Communications
Water Purification Ice Making

Portable Radio Communications
Energy/Sustainability Efforts

Escalator Safety Strips

Theater Outdoor Marquee

Fuel Storage Tank

Theater Shell Compressor

Security Upgrades
Technology
Bathroom Upgrades

Merchandise Cart

Electronic Menu Board Sysbem

Total Capital Request

FY 2011 FY 2012

$ 1.00 $ 1.00

10.00 12.00

7.00 8.00

142.50 150.00

52.50 55.00

18.31 45.62

$ 8.00 $ 8.00

3.00 $ 5.00

67.00 69.00
DvVP $ 100,000
VAA § 220,000
VAA 17,000
VAA 50,000
VAA 35,000
DVP $ 50,000
DVP 38,000
DVP 25,000
DVP 50,000
DVP 17,000
Dvp 9,000
DVP 65,000
DvVP 40,000
DVP 50,000
VAAF&B $§ 10,000
VAAF&B 150,000
$ 926,000



Table B-1

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

FY 2012 Recommendation
FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012
Actual Budget Estimate Recommendation
Utilities®:
Electricity $ 1,303,446 $ 1,239,000 $ 1,426,686 $ 1,400,800
Steam/Gas 725,817 846,000 775,790 836,000
Water/Sewer 112,195 112,800 113,667 112,800
$2,141,458 $ 2,197,800 $ 2,316,143 $ 2,349,600
Other Operating'®:
Parking Management $§ 171,651 $ 119342 $ 194,081 $ 213,579
Marketing Campaign - 100,000 - -
Landscaping 13,393 90,000 25,000 30,000
Pedestrian Safety 85,348 85,000 104,000 108,000
Repairs - F&B - 23,500 50,000 40,000
$ 270,392 $ 417,842 $ 373,081 $ 391,579
Administration/Other™:
Wages $ 81,085 $ 106,984 $ 111,934 $ 93,944
Benefits 24,441 24,500 23,044 22,780
Accounting/Audit 34,967 36,000 33,000 36,000
Legal Services 39,711 35,000 32,000 35,000
DID Assessment 53,175 53,500 55,103 58,721
Consulting Services - - - 76,663
Insurance 22,903 24,000 23,561 24,000
Meetings/Supplies 42,436 15,000 15,000 20,000
Arena Long-Term Capital Study - 50,000 50,000 7,500
Marketing - CVB 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000
Marketing - Sports Commission 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
Diversity Initiative 15,106 40,000 40,000 50,000
Procurement of Art (ArtPrize) - 25,000 25,000 30,000
Other 12,299 40,000 30,000 40,000
$ 426,123 $ 549,984 $ 538,642 $ 594,608

Notes:

Detail of Expenditure Estimates

“Downtown Improvement District special assessment contribution from CAA based on benefit allocation formula.

®FY 2012 budget recommendation anticipates continuing requirement for consulting assistance, plus $50,000 for an

economic impact study.

® Miscellaneous Revenue (FY 2011) includes a $250,000 capital contribution from SMG under terms of the

new food and beverage agreement.

(A)



Table C
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Consolidated Income Statement
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2010-2012

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012
Actual Budget Estimate Recommendation
Operating Revenue:
Event - VanAndel Arena $ 1,476,691 $ 1,460,958 $ 996,776 $ 1,259,448
- DeVos Place 2,447,855 2,409,380 2,563,307 2,531,170
Ancillary - VanAndel Arena 1,328,856 1,230,438 1,199,612 1,101,555
- DeVos Place 1,843,411 1,907,266 1,952,406 1,890,266
Other - VanAndel Arena 2,496,569 2,444,775 2,423,739 2,635,440
- DeVos Place 184,547 190,950 192,992 218,245
-Administration 95,217 30,000 30,000 30,000
Parking - VanAndel Arena 123,112 125,003 144,452 160,000
- DeVos Place 780,867 857,613 805,000 930,000
10,777,125 10,656,383 10,308,284 10,756,124
Operating Expense / Appropriations:
Facility Operations
- VanAndel Arena 3,654,125 3,767,884 3,648,771 3,763,377
- DeVos Place 4,890,100 5,059,868 5,050,675 5,253,339
- Management 555,723 317,343 320,834 323,690
- Parking Maintenance - 10,000 - 50,000
Other Operating 270,392 417,842 373,081 391,579
Capital-Repair 279,028 - - -
Administration/Other 426,123 549,984 538,642 594,608
10,075,491 10,122,921 9,932,003 10,376,593
Operating Income 701,634 533,462 376,281 379,531
Non-Operating Revenue:
Interest/Capital Contribution 322,422 435,000 460,000 206,000
Transfer (to) from Capital Acct. (415,117) (4,085,000) (3,557,841) (926,000)
(92,695) (3,650,000) (3,097,841) (720,000)
Net Income (Loss) 608,939 (3,116,538) (2,721,560) (340,469)
Fund Balance, beg. of yr. 24,119,455 24,728,394 24,728,394 22,006,834
Fund Balance, end of yr. $ 24,728,394 $ 21,611,856 $§ 22,006,834

$ 21,666,365 -8-




Table D
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Summary by Facility/Other

FY 2012 Recommendation
FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012
Actual Budget Estimate Recommendation
Van Andel Arena
Operating - Revenues $ 5,302,116 $ 5,136,171 $ 4,620,127 $ 4,996,443
- Expenses - Facilities (3,654,125) (3,767,884) (3,648,771) (3,763,377)
- Base Management Fees (158,672) (158,671) (160,417) (161,845)
Net Operating Income 1,489,319 1,209,616 810,939 1,071,221
Parking (net of allocated expenses) 123,112 125,003 144,452 160,000
Net Proceeds from VAA 1,612,431 1,334,619 955,391 1,231,221
DeVos Place Convention Center
Operating - Revenues 4,475,813 4,507,596 4,708,705 4,639,681
- Expenses - Facilities (4,890,100) (5,059,768) (5,050,675) (5,253,339)
- Base Management Fees (158,672) (158,671) (160,417) (161,845)
Net Operating Loss (572,959) (710,843) (502,387) (775,503)
Parking (net of allocated expenses) 609,216 738,271 610,919 716,421
Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 36,257 27,428 108,532 (59,082)
Other
Revenues
Interest/Capital Contribution 322,422 435,000 460,000 206,000
Miscellaneous 95,217 30,000 30,000 30,000
417,639 465,000 490,000 236,000
Expenses
Other Operating 377,769 298,500 179,000 178,000
Administration/Other 426,123 549,984 538,642 594,608
Less - SMG Incentive 238,379 - - -
- DeVos Parking Maintenance - 10,000 - 50,000
1,042,271 858,484 717,642 822,608
Net Other (624,632) (393,484) (227,642) (586,608)
Total Operating $ 1,024,056 $ 968,563 $ 836,281 $ 585,531
Capital Expenditures 415,117 4,085,000 3,557,841 926,000
Results Net of Capital Expenditures $ 608,939 $(3,116,437) $(2,721,560) § (340,469)




Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

=

‘\’/\N ANDEL

Item 6
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

|

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
NVE

ENTERTAINMENT, CO NTION, SHOW & SPORIS FACILITIES

May 2, 2011

TO: CAA Board of Directors
CAA Operations Committee
CAA Finance Committee

THROUGH'ﬂ' 'M%éeifg, Gezl Manager, DeVos Place/Van Andel Arena
FROM: ddie Tadlock, AsSsistant General Manager, DeVos Place
RE: Rental Rates, DeVos Place

| would like to take this opportunity to present SMG’s recommendations for Room Rental
Rates for DeVos Place, effective FY July 2012 through FY June 2016. SMG has
established a 5 year rate card for DeVos Place to provide potential clients the option to
secure rental rates in outlying years, and in some instances multiple years. Historically,
while rental rates at DeVos Place have not increased more than 3.25% each year over
the past few years (averaging between 2.75% - 3%); our rates continue to hover in the
mid-range on the regional average. Our current pricing schedules reflect current
economic assumptions in the regional marketplace and knowledge of rental rates of
comparable venues of similar size in the area.

We consider our current five year rate card to be a key marketing element for the facility.
Given the flexibility to negotiate rental rates with clients (limited to an increase or
reduction no greater than 20% of the approved rates) current rates afford us continued
opportunities to be competitive in the bidding process for Regional and National
Conventions. By keeping our current 5 year rental rate card, we position ourselves
appropriately to deliver the most value for the quality of product we serve.

Within the current structure of the rental rate cards approved by the CAA last fiscal year,
SMG is committed to providing the best services required in the marketing of the
facilities.

Attachments: Rental Rate Schedules FY's, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 *2016

*Seeking Approval

e FEVOSPLACE
DeVos Places

303 Monroe Ave. NW

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233
616.742.6500

Fax 616.742.6590

GME>

e e i A

Van Andel Arena®

130 Fulton West

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601
616.742.6600

Fax 616.742.6197



ROOM RENTAL RATES
FY 2012 (July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012)

ONE DAY
ROOM PERFORM ARTS GROUPS CONVENTION CONSUMER  MEETING BANQUET
DeVos Hall $2,800 vs $2,800/1* Performance N/A N/A $2,800 N/A
(Sun — Thurs) 12% $1,400/2™ Performance
DeVos Hall $3,300 vs $3,300/1* Performance N/A N/A $2,800 N/A
(Fri-Sat) 12% $1,650/2" Performance
Hall A-C $18,450 N/A $15,075 or $18,450 or $.29 $18,450 $9,450
vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft. net sq. ft.
Hall A-B $12,300 N/A $10,050 or $12,300 or $12,300 $6,300
or B-C vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A, B, $6,150 vs N/A $5,025 or $6,150 or $6,150 $3,150
OrC 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Meeting Rooms $1,350 vs N/A $1,100 or $1,350 or $1,350 $975
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
1* or 2™
Meeting Rooms $450 vs N/A $450 or $450 or $450 $450
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Individual
Ballroom $5,450 vs N/A $4,450 or $5,450 or $5,450 $3,200
12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $1,900 vs N/A $1,800 or $1,900 or $1,900 $1.450
AB,C-D 12% $.25 net sq. fi. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $1,050 vs N/A $1,000 or $1,050 or $1,050 $950
CorD 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
River Overlook $450 vs N/A $450 per day $450 per day $450 $450
Meeting Rooms 12%
Board Room N/A N/A $500 per day $500 per day $500 $500
Monroe Meeting $950 vs N/A $900 per day $950 per day $950 $900
Rooms A-D 12%
Monroe Meeting N/A N/A $350 per day $350 per day $350 $350
Room B, C, or D
Recital Hall or $675 vs N/A $675 per day $675 per day $675 $675
Monroe Meeting 12%
Room A

As managers of DeVos Place, SMG has the right to negotiate rental rates with clients, but

agrees that such negotiations will be limited to an increase or reduction no greater than 20% of
approved rental rates. These fluctuations may be considered if it became the shared position of
affected area businesses that mutual special consideration is necessary to attract the business.
SMQG also has the right to negotiate rates for labor and equipment in accordance with industry
standards, including charging for items which may not be included on this rental rate sheet.



ROOM RENTAL RATES
FY 2013 (July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013)

ONE DAY
ROOM PERFORM ARTS GROUPS CONVENTION CONSUMER  MEETING BANQUET
DeVos Hall $2,900 vs $2,900/1* Performance N/A N/A $2,900 N/A
(Sun — Thurs) 12% $1,450/2" Performance
DeVos Hall $3,400 vs $3,400/1* Performance N/A N/A $2,900 N/A
(Fri-Sat) 12% $1,700/2™ Performance
Hall A-C $18,975 N/A $15,600 or $18,975 or $18,975 $9,750
vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A-B $12,650 N/A $10,400 or $12,650 or $12,650 $6,500
or B-C vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A, B, $6,325 vs N/A $5,200 or $6,325 or $6,325 $3,250
orC 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Meeting Rooms $1,400 vs N/A $1,150 or $1,400 or $1,400 $1,000
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
1" or 2™
Meeting Rooms $475 vs N/A $475 or $475 or $475 $475
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Individual
Ballroom $5,600 vs N/A $4,600 or $5,600 or $5,600 $3,300
12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $1,950 vs N/A $1,850 or $1,950 or $1,950 $1,500
A,B,C-D 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $1,100 vs N/A $1,050 or $1,100 or $1,100 $1,000
CorD 12% $.25 net sq. f. $.29 net sq. ft.
River Overlook $475 vs N/A $475 per day $475 per day $475 $475
Meeting Rooms 12%
Board Room N/A N/A $525 per day $525 per day $525 $525
Monroe Meeting $1,000 vs N/A $950 per day $1,000 per day $1,000 $950
Rooms A-D 12%
Monroe Meeting N/A N/A $375 per day $375 per day $375 $375
Room B, C, or D
Recital Hall or $700 vs N/A $700 per day $700 per day $700 $700
Monroe Meeting 12%
Room A

As managers of DeVos Place, SMG has the right to negotiate rental rates with clients, but

agrees that such negotiations will be limited to an increase or reduction no greater than 20% of
approved rental rates. These fluctuations may be considered if it became the shared position of
affected area businesses that mutual special consideration is necessary to attract the business.
SMG also has the right to negotiate rates for labor and equipment in accordance with industry
standards, including charging for items which may not be included on this rental rate sheet.



ROOM RENTAL RATES
FY 2014 (July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014)

ONE DAY
ROOM PERFORM ARTS GROUPS CONVENTION CONSUMER  MEETING BANQUET
DeVos Hall $3,000 vs $3,000/1* Performance N/A N/A $3,000 N/A
(Sun ~ Thurs) 12% $1,500/2" Performance
DeVos Hall $3,500 vs $3,500/1* Performance N/A N/A $3,000 N/A
(Fri-Sat) 12% $1,750/2" Performance
Hall A-C $19,500 N/A $16,125 or $19,500 or $19,500 $10,050
vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A-B $13,000 N/A $10,750 or $13,000 or $13,000 $6,700
or B-C vs 12% $.25 net sq. ft $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A, B, $6,500 vs N/A $5,375 or $6,500 or $6,500 $3,350
OorC 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Meeting Rooms $1,450 vs N/A $1,200 or $1,450 or $1,450 $1,025
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. fi. $.29 net sq. f.
lsl or 2nd
Meeting Rooms $500 vs N/A $500 or $500 or $500 $500
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Individual
Ballroom $5,750 vs N/A $4,750 or $5,750 or $5,750 $3,400
12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $2,000 vs N/A $1,900 or $2,000 or $2,000 $1,550
A,B,C-D 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $1,150 vs N/A $1,100 or $1,150 or $1,150 $1,050
CorD 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
River Overlook $500 vs N/A $500 per day $500 per day $500 $500
Meeting Rooms 12%
Board Room N/A N/A $550 per day $550 per day $550 $550
Monroe Meeting $1,050 vs N/A $1,000 per day $1,050 per day $1,050 $1,000
Rooms A-D 12%
Monroe Meeting N/A N/A $400 per day $400 per day $400 $400
Room B, C, or D
Recital Hall or $750 vs N/A $750 per day $750 per day $750 $750
Monroe Meeting 12%
Room A

As managers of DeVos Place, SMG has the right to negotiate rental rates with clients, but
agrees that such negotiations will be limited to an increase or reduction no greater than 20% of
approved rental rates. These fluctuations may be considered if it became the shared position of
affected area businesses that mutual special consideration is necessary to attract the business.
SMG also has the right to negotiate rates for labor and equipment in accordance with industry
standards, including charging for items which may not be included on this rental rate sheet.




ROOM RENTAL RATES
FY 2015 (July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015)

ONE DAY
ROOM PERFORM ARTS GROUPS CONVENTION CONSUMER  MEETING  BANQUET
DeVos Hall $3,100 vs $3,100/1* Performance N/A N/A $3,100 N/A
(Sun — Thurs) 12% $1,550/2™ Performance
DeVos Hall $3,600 vs $3,600/1* Performance N/A N/A $3,100 N/A
(Fri-Sat) 12% $1,800/2" Performance
Hall A-C $20,025 N/A $16,650 or $20,025 or $20,025 $10,350
vs 12% $.25 net sq. fi. $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A-B $13,350 N/A $11,100 or $13,350 or $13,350 $6,900
or B-C vs 12% $.25net sq. ft $.29 net sq. fi.
Hall A, B, $6,675 vs N/A $5,550 or $6,675 or $6,675 $3,450
orC 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Meeting Rooms $1,500 vs N/A $1,250 or $1,500 or $1,500 $1,050
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
1* or 2™
Meeting Rooms $525 vs N/A $525 or $525 or $525 $525
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Individual
Ballroom $5,900 vs N/A $4,900 or $5,900 or $5,900 $3,500
12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $2,050 vs N/A $1,950 or $2,050 or $2,050 $1,600
A,B,C-D 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. fi.
Ballroom $1,200 vs N/A $1,150 or $1,200 or $1,200 $1,100
CorD 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
River Overlook $525 vs N/A $525 per day $525 per day $525 $525
Meeting Rooms 12%
Board Room N/A N/A $575 per day $575 per day $575 $575
Monroe Meeting $1,100 vs N/A $1,050 per day $1,100 per day $1,100 $1,050
Rooms A-D 12%
Monroe Meeting N/A N/A $425 per day $425 per day $425 $425
Room B, C, or D
Recital Hall or $775 vs N/A $775 per day $775 per day $775 $775
Monroe Meeting 12%
Room A

As managers of DeVos Place, SMG has the right to negotiate rental rates with clients, but

agrees that such negotiations will be limited to an increase or reduction no greater than 20% of
approved rental rates. These fluctuations may be considered if it became the shared position of
affected area businesses that mutual special consideration is necessary to attract the business.
SMG also has the right to negotiate rates for labor and equipment in accordance with industry

standards, including charging for items which may not be included on this rental rate sheet.




ROOM RENTAL RATES
FY 2016 (July 1,2015 - June 30, 2016)

ONE DAY
ROOM PERFORM ARTS GROUPS CONVENTION CONSUMER MEETING BANQUET
DeVos Hall $3,200 vs $3,200/1* Performance N/A N/A $3,200 N/A
(Sun — Thurs) 12% $1,600/2™ Performance
DeVos Hall $3,700 vs $3,700/1* Performance N/A N/A $3,200 N/A
(Fri-Sat) 12% $1,850/2" Performance
Hall A-C $20,550 N/A $17,175 or $20,550 or $20,550 $10,650
vs 12% $.25 net sq. fi. $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A-B $13,700 N/A $11,450 or $13,700 or $13,700 $7,100
or B-C vs 12% $.25 netsq. f $.29 net sq. ft.
Hall A, B, $6,850 vs N/A $5,725 or $6,850 or $6,850 $3,550
OorC 12% $.25 net sq. fi. $.29 net sq. ft.
Meeting Rooms $1,550 vs N/A $1,300 or $1,550 or $1,550 $1,075
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. fi. $.29 net sq. fi.
lsl or 2nd
Meeting Rooms $550 vs N/A $550 or $550 or $550 $550
Grand Gallery 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
Individual
Ballroom $6,050 vs N/A $5,050 or $6,050 or $6,050 $3,600
12% $.25 net sq. fi. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $2,100 vs N/A $2,000 or $2,100 or $2,100 $1,650
A,B,C-D 12% $.25 net sq. 1. $.29 net sq. ft.
Ballroom $1,250 vs N/A $1,200 or $1,250 or $1,250 $1,150
CorD 12% $.25 net sq. ft. $.29 net sq. ft.
River Overlook $550 vs N/A $550 per day $550 per day $550 $550
Meeting Rooms 12%
Board Room N/A N/A $600 per day $600 per day $600 $600
Monroe Meeting $1,150 vs N/A $1,100 per day $1,150 per day $1,150 $1,100
Rooms A-D 12%
Monroe Meeting N/A N/A $450 per day $450 per day $450 $450
Room B, C, or D
Recital Hall or $825 vs N/A $825 per day $825 per day $82s5 $825
Monroe Meeting 12%
Room A

As managers of DeVos Place, SMG has the right to negotiate rental rates with clients, but

agrees that such negotiations will be limited to an increase or reduction no greater than 20% of
approved rental rates. These fluctuations may be considered if it became the shared position of
affected area businesses that mutual special consideration is necessary to attract the business.
SMG also has the right to negotiate rates for labor and equipment in accordance with industry

standards, including charging for items which may not be included on this rental rate sheet.




GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
OF FIRST ADDENDUM TO MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH SMG

Boardmember , supported by Boardmember ,

moved the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the “CAA”)
and SMG have entered into a Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated and effective as
of July 1, 2011 to promote, operate, maintain, market and manage the Van Andel Arena and
DeVos Place; and

WHEREAS, the CAA desires to engage SMG to provide additional services outside and
beyond the scope of services in the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the additional services shall be performed as described and in accordance
with a First Addendum to Management Agreement (the “First Addendum”) dated as of July 1,
2011.

RESOLVED:

1. That the First Addendum substantially in the form presented at this meeting is
hereby approved with such modifications not materially adverse to the CAA approved as to
content by the CAA Chairman and as to form by the CAA’s legal counsel and the CAA
Chairman is authorized and directed to execute the approved First Addendum for and on behalf
of the CAA.

2. That all resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the

same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

GRAPIDS 61448-159 264426v1



YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

Dated: June 3, 2011

Susan Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary
of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the CAA Board at a
regular meeting held on June 3, 2011, and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant
to and in compliance with Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as amended.

Dated: June 3, 2011

Susan Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

GRAPIDS 61448-159 264426v1



5/31/11 RAW

FIRST ADDENDUM TO MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST ADDENDUM TO MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT (the “First
Addendum”) is dated as of July 1, 2011, between the GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY (the “CAA”) and SMG.

RECITALS

A. The CAA and SMG have entered into a Management Agreement (the
“Agreement”) dated and effective as of July 1, 2011, for SMG to promote, operate, maintain,
market and manage the Arena and Convention Center, collectively referred to as the Facilities, as
an independent contractor pursuant to the terms of the Agreement.

B. The CAA further desires to engage SMG to provide additional services to the
CAA outside and beyond the scope of services to be provided by SMG pursuant to the
Agreement.

C. The additional services to be provided by SMG shall be as identified and provided
in this First Addendum

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the additional mutual promises, covenants
and agreements herein contained, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree
as follows:

Section 1. Additional Services. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement
SMG shall provide the additional services identified in Attachment A attached hereto and
incorporated herein (the “Additional Services”).

Section 2. Performance of Additional Services. It is agreed by the parties hereto that
the Additional Services shall be performed by SMG employee, Richard MacKeigan
(“MacKeigan™). MacKeigan shall (a) devote an average of not less than 7 hours per week and
not more than 8 hours per week determined on the basis of 48 weeks per Fiscal Year and
(b) keep track of the time he devotes to performing the Additional Services so that it may be
distinguished from the scope of services MacKeigan performs pursuant to the Agreement as
General Manager of the Facilities.

Section 3. Compensation for Additional Services. SMG shall receive $30,000 as
compensation for the performance of the Additional Services for the first Fiscal Year of the
Initial Term. Thereafter, for each Fiscal Year during the Initial Term and the First Renewal
Term, if any, and Second Renewal Term, if any, the amount shall be adjusted on the first day of
each subsequent Fiscal Year by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index All Urban
Consumers (CPI-U), U.S. city average, during the one year period ending in June immediately
preceding such Fiscal Year, as published by the U.S. Department of Labor, provided, that for
purposes of this adjustment the amount of any decrease below 0% or any increase above 3%
yearly should be disregarded. Such amounts shall be paid by the CAA to SMG in quarterly

GRAPIDS 61-448-159 264194v



installments at the end of each calendar quarter. SMG agrees to pay such amounts less normal
and customary withholdings to MacKeigan.

Section 4. Term. Subject to early termination as provided in Section 5 hereof, the term
of this First Addendum shall run simultaneously with the Initial Term and First Renewal Term
and Second Renewal Term, as applicable, in the Agreement.

Section S. Early Termination. Either party may terminate this First Addendum at
anytime without cause upon 30 days advanced written notice to the other party in accordance
with the notice provisions of this Agreement or with less than 30 days written notice for cause.
In addition, since the CAA has agreed to enter into this First Addendum based on the
representation that the Additional Services will be personally performed by MacKeigan, the
CAA may immediately terminate this First Addendum upon written notice to SMG in
accordance with the Agreement if MacKeigan shall be unavailable, unwilling or unable to
perform the Additional Services. All compensation payable to SMG under this First Addendum
shall be prorated to the date of termination and paid to SMG.

Section 6. Independent Contractor. The relationship of SMG to the CAA under this
First Addendum shall be that of an independent contractor and nothing contained herein is
intended or shall be construed to create or establish a partnership or joint venture between the
CAA and SMG. MacKeigan shall be an employee of SMG and shall not be deemed an
employee of the CAA for any purpose whatsoever.

Section 7. Amendment. This First Addendum shall not be altered, modified or
amended in whole or in part, except in a writing executed by both parties hereto.

Section 8. Termination of Letter Agreement. On the Effective Date (as hereinafter
defined) of this First Addendum the letter agreement dated August 23, 2006, between the CAA
and MacKeigan shall terminate.

Section 9. Definitions. Terms used and not defined in this First Addendum shall have
those meanings as defined in the Agreement.

Section 10. Effective Date. This First Addendum is effective July 1, 2011 (the
“Effective Date”).

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, this First Addendum has been executed by the parties
hereto as of the day and year first written above.

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

By:

Steven R. Heacock
Chairperson

GRAPIDS 61448-139 26430401



SMG

By:

John F. Burns
Chief Financial Officer

[ hereby consent to the provisions of
Section 8 of the First Addendum.

Richard MacKeigan

Dated: June 2011

GRAPIDS 61448-159 264394v|



ATTACHMENT A

Additional Services

All of the following will be performed in consultation with the CAA Chairman and other
members of the CAA Board, as appropriate. All substantive decisions shall require CAA Board
approval.

Act on behalf of the CAA during discussions/negotiations regarding property used by the
CAA or to be acquired or utilized by the CAA.

Identify and develop Board workshops, networking and other opportunities to increase
the CAA’s effectiveness.

Coordinate the strengthening of relationships of the CAA with the City of Grand Rapids,
Kent County and the State of Michigan and at the federal government level, as
appropriate.

Oversee the CAA’s parking operations at the Facilities.

Assess, prioritize and develop CAA produced events to be held at the Facilities.

Oversee the CAA Administrative Manager and other CAA employees and contracted
personnel.

Identify, prioritize and assist in the development of long range strategic policy initiatives.

Work with the CAA public relations consultant to positively present the CAA to the
media and the public generally.

Represent the CAA on community boards, groups and committees.
Review and approve invoices for CAA contracted services.

Assist in the application and administration of governmental grants.
Assist the auditors in the completion of the CAA’s annual audit.

Work with the CAA’s community inclusion group in the development and promotion of
the CAA’s Diversity Mission Statement.

Work on special projects as designated by the CAA such as the amphitheater, wine and
food festival and the CAA’s involvement in ArtPrize.

Assist the CAA Board in its periodic review of the booking policies for the Facilities.

Attachment A

GRAPIDS 61448-159 2643194\ |



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY

Item 7

DATE EVENT EC | MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION

Wed, Jun 1 Available

Thur, Jun 2 Available

Fri, Jun 3 Available

Sat, Jun 4 Spotlight Saturdays DG | LYNNE | 5/3 Bank Vault | 9P-2A Urban mixer

Sun, Jun § Available

Mon, Jun 6 Available

Tue, Jun 7 Available

Wed, Jun 8 SMG LH Banquet C 9A-12P CPR Training
1P-4P CPR Training

Thur, Jun 9 SMG LH Banquet C 9A-12P CPR Training
1P-4P CPR Training

Fri, Jun 10 SMG LH Banquet C 8:30A-3:30P | CPR Training

Sat, Jun 11 Available

Sun, Jun 12 Available

Mon, Jun 13 Available

Tue, Jun 14 Available

Wed, Jun 15 Available

Thur, Jun 16 Available

Fri, Jun 17 Available

Sat, Jun 18 Available

Sun, Jun 19 Available

Mon, Jun 20 Available

Tue, Jun 21 Available

Wed, Jun 22 Available

Thur, Jun 23 Available

Fri, Jun 24 Available

Sat, Jun 25 Available

Sun, Jun 26 Available




L1/1€/S

d-v wooljieqd = -V 11vd A-V JqOO[I9AQ JPAY = 4-V OY
[leH adsueuLiojad soAdd = Ad SuI00Yy Ul 90JUOIA = -V NOW Ba1y AI9[[BD) pURID = NN
OV S[IeH 3qIyxg = D-V HA H-V swooy Sunsajp JOOlSAQ = H-V O J-V swooy Sunasy Ass[jen pueln = J-V O
oo
uj peon uoyonpold wdpo:9-wdpo:z
yeaig uonanpoid wdpo:z-wdoo: L
U] peoT uolonpold wdpp:1-weQQ:g g-v wooljeg YINNIA LNFNHOTING NSAD 9 ANNL 'NOW
umop |
3eaiq UnoY (IeH ¥aQyx3 ajeidwod
umop 01— INd00:S O~V Sa20
yealq Unod wooljieg aja|dwod MOyS [IeH kqiyx3g
Az 0} - Nd00:¥ ‘oned ‘As9|e
aliqnd INd0O:Z — WV00:8 pueln ‘4-y Aigjleo
ay} 0} uadQ s100Q WV00:2 pueis
000°9 IONVANALLY 1S3 [BAIY JUBID WV0ES | ‘Q-v swooljeg ‘O-v HI dIHSNOIdWVHD FLV.LS TIVAATTIOA YOINN( IN ¢ ANNS 'NNS
spedaq yeis vanrin
a3 INd00:0L 0~V $300
agnd | WJ00:0L — INV00'8 MOoyg IleH ¥qyx3
ay) 0} uadQ s100Q NV00:2 ‘oned ‘liajen
000°9 FONVANTLLY 1S3 |BALLY JUBID NVY0E: S puels) ‘4-y Ais|e9 dIHSNOIdINVHD JLV.LS TIVHATTIOA dOINN( IN ¥ NN "LVS
L1 pue QL m_<
nyy [ INd00:0L — Nd00:9 leH Jquyx3
ylem-saonoesd wes | INd00:6 — Nd00:S OV H3
sdnjeg abeubig ~ 18N |  IND0O'S - INV00:8 4V 99 ‘99

|EALLY JU3ID WV0E:Z | ‘a-V swooljeg ‘3-v H3 dIHSNOIdAVHD 3LV.LS TTVHATTIOA SYOINAS IN € ANNS T

sdnjeg unod Nd00:8 — WV00:6 EIES)
(120 IN G ‘uoky pueis
1) Sleny sxoni| wes WY00:8 | ‘a-v swooijjeg ‘O-v H3
[eAllY JudlD WV0g:2 JTHSNOIJAVHD F1V.LS TTVEATTIOA SYOINNS IN T ANNS 'SYNHL

noAeT
unoY 103 Buimesq Neyd 008 — INd00:S O-V slieH 1quyx3
yinog
0¥ | MHog juawdinb3g - dnjeg Wd00:8 —INd0O:v | 9 lleH ‘abelois 5-9 H3 dIHSNOIJWVHD 4.LV.LS TIVEATTIOA SYOINN( IN
FONVNILNIVIA
YOLIVANOD AVA TV LIFILS NOA'T (DS) IONVNILNIVIA JOLOVINOD 1 ANNSf 'aIm

ONVNILNIVIA
JOLIVINOD AVATIV 1IFALS NOAT (DNS) IONVNALNIVIN Y¥OLIOVJNOD 1€ AVIA 3NL

1102 — ATIIM dJSIATYT

BV IESOASC



L1/1€/S

009°1 JONVANFLLY "1S3

d-v wooljjed = -V 11vd

[[eY 2oueuLIolsd S0ASd = Ad

o anas

-V SlleH ¥quyxg =

D~V HA

Nd6S: 1 1-NV00:8 ao4ayv 1ive

Swo0Y SuiIA 20IUOIA = -V NOW
H-V swooy Sunasp Joo[dA0 = H-V O

-V HOO[IRAQ JoAR] = J-V OY

YINNIC TYNNNY SAIdVY ANVID JO 81710 JINONODI

BalY AI9[jeD) puein = DO
d-V swooy Sunssiy A19][en pueln = 4-V O

Z1 IANNS 'NAS

! ! | a uaouw

o

ONILLFIN

1NO FA0N
JONVINIOLITd
NI JAON

IO peo uondnpoid
uondasay mo|s) Jayy
Jauuiq pue wesboid
wooJjjeg 0} siooq
uondaoay

|eAay 3sanb Aueg
$HOBYD punog

dn j9s sjquiesug zzepr
sa|qe] 198 0} Aemwy
|esseayay

|esseayay

|esieayay

|esieayay

11eQ uononpoid

Nd00:CI-NV00:8

d01-d0¢-8
Nd0£:8-Nd00:L
NdL-NdE

waoo:6

wdpo: 1 L-wdpo:6
wdgo:6-wdoo:Z
wdoo:9

wdoo:9

wdgi:g

wdog:v

wdoo:v

wdoo:g

wdog:z

wdoo:z
wego:LL
wego:oL
weQo:8

a-v wooljeg
Asjjes) pueio)
g-v wooujjeg
g-v wooueg
Aig|jes) puess)

Aigjjes) puein

a-v wooljjeg

ONILITN SYIDVNVIN ALID

ATIIINIIS Adddf

YINNIA LNFAHIIINT NSAD

01 INNS Tdd

6 INNM "SYINHL

8 ANN( ‘dIm

ainyedap jusid wdog:0L
uondsosy wd 00:0L -00:G uonouny-ald ‘ay Oy
_%>_t< JEENTS) § wdglg gV JOOUaAD 18Ny [euonelAy
n-1os wooy w-d 00:€-00:Z uonouny-a1d ‘gv O o
00T FONVANILLY "1s3 NYFLNI [EALE JuBIID w-d 00:€-00:2 uonouny-aid gy Oy sdnouo ssauisng uipayur] spidey puels Jajealn
Aep 10§ auoQg wdoo:9
|esieayay JojeleN wdoo: ¢
yealg youn_ wdoo: 1
ybnosyy
Hem @919 AiD JojoN wdoo:z1
fesieayay 1ong weopo:} 1
aoe|d ut
198 siley) pue sa|ge ) weQo:0L
r 189 uoRoNpoId wepo'6 a-v wooljleg YINNIA LNIWHOIINT NSAD L ANNS 'SANL

110C — ATHIM AISIATYA

HOVTESOAEC



11/1€/8
a-v wooijeg = d-v 11vd d-V JOO[I3AQ JBANY = 4-V OY

[IeH 2%uBULIO}IDd SOA2d = Ad SWo0Y wcmuooz Q0JUOIA = J-V NOWN Baly bo:mo puelin) = nn

€ O-V SIEH 1qyxd = O-V HA H-V swooy Sunssj JooHsA0 = H-Y O -V swooy 3unsay A1[[en pueid = 4-V O
dn 13s INd6S-11-INV00:8 dT1ivd

NYT.LNI DONILLITIN Nd6S:11-INV00:8 Vv 11ve TYNOLLYNYALNI ATTONIA
NOILVYLSIOTY Nd6S TT-INV00:8

SIWOOY LNOAVIdd Wd6S-11-INV00:8 Ag99071 VIHOO3S
SINOOY LNOMvIId Wd6S TI-NV00:8 HD 0DD
SINOO0Y LNOoMvIYd Wd6S TI-INV00:8 49 099
SIWOOY LNOAVIAIg Nd6S 11-INV00:8 ads 0ovo
SINOO0Y LNONvVALd Nd6S T1-INV00:8 av 0Do
JOVdS ONILITN Wd6S- 11-INV00:8 | 4-V OD WIQ¥d dSVHD
FOVIOLS/D14:40 Nd6S-T11-INV00:8 JLND 'Sna
SNOISSIS/STVIN Nd6S T11-INV00:8 ad 1ivd
JOVdS ONILLITN Nd6S 11-NV00:8 a711vd

JOVdS DNLLITN INd6S-11-INV00:8 VvV 11ve ALNLILSNI NOLOV L1 ANOC T4

NOILVYLSIOTY Nd6S:T11-INV00:8

SIWOOY LNOXvIdd Nd6S:11-INV00:8 Add01 VIHOD3S
SIWOOY LNOXv3Idd Nd6S T11-INV00:8 HO 00D
SINOOY LNOMVIYd Nd6S T11-INV00-8 44 099
SIWOOY LNOXVIYYg Nd6S T11-NV00:8 asooo
SIWOOY LNoXvIdd Nd6S: T1-INV00:8 gav 0DD

JOVdS ONILITN Nd6S TT-INV00:8 | 4-V OD IWJa¥d 3SVHD

ADVIOLS/II1440 Nd6S:11-NV00:8 d1IND 'snd
SNOISSIS/STVIN Nd6S:11-INV00:8 ad 1ive JLNLILLSNI NOLOV 91 INNS 'SANHL

NOILVYLSIOTI Nd6S:11-INV00:8

SIWOOY LNOMVIYYg INd6S TT-INV00-8 Agd01 VIHOO3S
SINOOY LNOJVIYd Nd6S-11-INV00:8 HO 009D
SINOO0Y LNOXVIYd Nd6S:11-INV00:8 43 099
SINOOY LNOMVIYY Nd6S T1-INV00:8 asoovo
SINOOY LNONVIYd Nd6S:11-INV00:8 gav 095
dIVdS ONILIIN Wd6S TT-INV00:8 | J-V DO WIQY¥d dSVHO
IDVIOLS/IO1440 Nd6S:T11-INV00:8 JLNO 'snd
i SNOISSIS/STVIN Nd6S:11-NV00:8 qdd/dD 11vd JLNLLLSNI NOLOV SEANNS 'dIm
JINNIA Nd6S:11-INV00:8 4-v DD ONILITW JIAIAQUd TTV HLTVIH WNYLIIdS
NOILdIOTY Nd6S:T1-INV00:8 Ag94d07 VIHDD3S
dIVdS ONILIIN d6S: 11-NV00-8 WJay¥d asvHO
IDVIOLS JI1440 Nd6S 11-INV00-8 ALND 'snd
LIgIHXd Nd6S 11-INV00-8 IONN4-3Ad TIvE
HANLOTTAINNIA Nd6S: 1 1-NV00:8 ad 1Tive JLNLLLSNI NOLOV ¥1 ANNC SANL
VIV NOLLdIDTH Nd6S:T1-NV00:8 4V DD
VIYV NOILLJTFOTY Wd6S:11-AV00:8 dSVHO
ar AINNIA Nd6S: 11-NV00:8 aosgy 1ivd YINNIA TVANNY SAIdVI ANVYD 4O NT10 JINONODT €1 dNNI 'NOW

1102 — ATIHIM dISIATY
HOVTESOAEC]



11/1¢/8
a-v wooijeg = -V 11vd A=V JOO[RAQ JPANY = 4-V OY

[[eH 9dueulIo)ldd SOAd = Ad SWooy MEU—OO—Z A0IUON = -V NOIN Baly bv:a@ pueln = nn
14 O-V SlleH uqIyxd = O-¥ HA H-V swooy Suiiesjyl 30019A0 = H-V O 4-V swooy Sunsaly AI9[[en puerd = 4-V O
FONVINAOLY3d d01-d0og:L HdAd
TVSAVIHTY DISNN d9-V8 TIVH TVLIDTY
AV NI JAONW dZ-V0l A20d NOAT/HdAQ NTYHS FD AVAAVOYd
WOOY LNOAVIEL Nd6S-TI-FNV00-8 4-v-0d
WOO0Y LNOMvadd Wd6S:11-INV00:8 a-v NON
WOOY LNOAVIIL Nd6S:1I-NV00-8 H-V 0DD
WOOY LNOAVIYL Wd6S TI-INV00:8 i-v DD
WOOY LNOoAVIIg INd6S-11-INV00:8 WQ@dd dSVHO
WOOY LNnoJAvadd Nd6S T11-INV00-8 “dINO 'Snd
WOOY LNoAvIdd INd6S-TT-INV00:8 d11vd
va WOOY LNOoMvIdd INd6S-1 1-INV00-8 Vv 11vd STOOHIDS MIN HOAL MAN
JOVIOLS Wd6S T T-INV00-8 O H3
NOILLVYLSIOFY 651 1-INV00-8 FAd-O HA
1r dn L3S Nd6S- 1 I-INV00-8 O H MOHS AYIDOUYD-TAOLS YALNITD STIOLS NV.LIVIS 1Z ANN[ 'SANL

AV NI JAON NdOT — NV A20d NOAT/HdAd NIYHS 4D AVMAVOIT
WOO0Y LNOoAVIYd Wd6S: T1-NV00:8 4-v-Od
WNOOY LNOAVIdd Wd6S: 11-NV00:8 a-v NOW
WOOY LNOANVIYY Wd6S:11-NV00:8 H-V 0DD
WOOY LNOAVIYYd Wd6S:T1-NV00:8 4-v 0D
WOOY LNOAVIYd Wd6S:T1-NV00:8 WQa@Jg 3SVHO
WOOY LNOoMvaAddg Nd6S:11-NV00:8 "4LND 'Snd
NOISSIS TVIINID JAd6S:11-NV00:8 q71vd
vda NOOY LNOAVIAL Wd6S:11-NV00:8 v 1ivd STOOHOS MIN HOAL MIN
dn 13as Nd6S:11-NV00:8 ONN4-3dd O HA
dn i3s Wd6S:11-NV00:8 IOVIOLS D H3

dn L3S Nd6S:11-NV00:8 J HY MOHS AYTD0UD-TAOLS YILNID STIOLS NV.LIVIS 0T INNI 'NOW

AV O FYd JTdISSOd adl A20d NOAT/HdAQ NIYHS D AVMAVOIg
iy dN L3S LAVID LIV Nd6S:11-NV00:8 JHY MOHS AYTFD0AYD-TYOLS YTLNID SFIOLS NV.LIVIS
dn L3as 4-v-0y
dN L3S Nd6S:11-INV00:8 ‘H-V 00D
dn 13s Nd6S11-AV00:8 4-vOD
dn 13s Nd6S:11-NV00:8 WQaJ8 3SVYHO
dn 13s Nd6S:11-NV00:8 “JLND 'snd
AINAYIINOD Nd6S 11-NV00-8 g 711vd
va dn.iias Nd6S-11-INV00:8 Vv 11vd STOOHDS MIN HOFL MIAN 61 ANN{ 'NNS
ar NOISSIS TVIINID INd6S: TT-INV00:8 v 1ivd TYNOLLVNYILNI AVIONIA
JOVdS ONILITN Nd6S: 11-WV00:8 'HODD
vd dn L3S N6S: 1 1-INV00:8 ALND ‘SNd STOOHIS MIN HOFL MIN 81 INNS "LVS

110C — ATHIM AISIATY
BHOVTEHSOCASC]



L1/1¢/S

@-v wooljeg = d-V 11vd d-V YOOH3AQ JoATY = 4-V OY
[1eH 2ouBULIONd SOAdd = Ad Swooy SunaA S0JUO = 0-V NOW valy AI9[[eD puRl) = DO
S O-V SIleH #qxd = OV Ha H-V swooy Sunssjy YOOHIAQ = H-V O d-V swooy Sunsa A19|[eD puelD = 4-v D
FONVINIOIYAd WdO0E01 —INd8
AV FIONVINIOLUTd WdOE-¥ — NdT HdAd NTYHS AD AVMAVOUd
NOLLYZIYIHSOM) d6S-T11-INV00-8 N3IHJLIM dAd 44V.LS NTFHOLD dAd
ONILITN
ar JOVdS ONILIIN Nd6S:1E-INV00-8 WQaYd 3SVHO LvAYLIY TVANNV ALIYOYOS VHATVY VddVA VHATV §C ANNI'LVS

b\ 4 FONVNEOIIId NdOE:01 —INd8 HdAd NTYHS 4D AVMAVOId
NOLLVZIIFHSO) Nd6S-11-INV00:8 NIHOLIM dAQ 44V.LS NIFHOLIA dAd
WOOY 1LNOAvVAId Wd6S:11-INV00:8 4-V-Od
WOOY LNOAVIYY Nd6S-11-NV00:8 a-v NOW
WOO0Y LNOAVIYL Wd6S:11-NV00:8 H-V 09D
WOO0Y LNOAVAYL Wd6S 11-NV00:8 4V 09D
WOOY LNoNvIYd Wd6S 11-INV00-8 WNQY4d 3SVHO
WOO0Y LNOAVIYL Nd6S-11-INV00-8 WLND 'Snd
NOISSIS TVIINID Nd6S:11-INV00-8 q711vd
vd WOOY LNOAVIUE Nd6S-11-INV00-8 vV T1vd STOOHIOS MIN HOFL MIN T ANNM Y

AV JONVINIOAIAd d01-d0¢€-L HdAd NTYHS "AO AVMAVOIL
LSVAAVIIL Nd6S:11-NV00:8 as 1ivd
NOLLVYLSIOTY Wd6S-11-NV00:8 Tdd-O HI
JOVIOLS Nd6S:11-NV00:8 JHH
ar dn 13s Nd6S:11-INV00-8 JH3 MOHS AUTD0UD-FTIOLS YFLNID STIOLS NV.LAVIS
HONN1 Nd6S:11-INV00:-8 asd NOW
ar JIVdS ONILITN Nd6S:11-NV00:8 V NOW AAVOd ‘NINAY AYLSNANI ANIIHD | €C INNS SYNHL

AV JONVINAIOAYId d0I1-dO€:L HdAd NTYHS 4O AvMaAvodd
LIgIHX3 Nd6S- 11-NV00:8 as 1ivd
NOLLVILSIOFTA Wd6S:11-NV00-8 g44-0 H3
FOVIOLS Nd6S:11-NV00:8 IOVIOLS O HA
I dn 138 Nd6S:11-INV00:8 JH3 MOHS AYTOOUD-TYOLS YT LNID STIOLS NV.LIVIS
WOOY LNONvIdd Wd6S-11-NV00:8 4-v-0d
WOOY LNOMVIYd Nd6S:11-NV00-8 a-v NOW
WOO0Y LNOAVIIL Wd6S 11-NV00:8 ‘H-V 0DD
NOOY LNONVIYd Nd6S T11-NV00:8 4V OO
WOOY LNOANVIdYg Wd6S- 11-NV00:8 QY8 3SVHO
WOOY LNOAVIYE Nd6S:11-NV00:8 ULND SNg
NOISS3S TVIINGD Wd6S:11-NV00-8 g11ve
vd WNOOY LNOMVIId Nd6S:11-INV00:-8 v 1ivd STOOHOS MIN HOAL MIN
Va4V NOILJFOTY Wd6S:11-INV00-8 adsd J0INON

FIVdS ONILITIN Nd6S:11-NV00-8 YV NOW 0SSV S¥INIVd dOOd NIZOdd TN CTANML 'gIM

[10C — ATXdIM AISIATY
HIOVTIESOAEC



11/1¢/S
a-v wooljjeq = g-V 11vd 4-V JOOHRAQ ISARY = 4-V O
[1eH 2ouBULIOMSd SOAST = Ad Swooy SunsdA S0IUOW = d-V NOW valy A1af[en pueln = DO
9 O-V slleH ¥quuxgq = D-V HA H-V swooy 3unsajql YOOHaAQ = H-V O d-V swooy Suesy A1oj[en pueln = J4-V D

NOLLYZI¥IHSON INd6S:11-INV00:8 NIHOLIM dAd 44V.LS NFHOLIY dAQ
SWOOULNONVIdE INd6S:11-NV008 40D
SWOOY LNOYVI¥d INd6S:11-NV00:8 100
STVIW/ONILIIN N6S: 1 1-NV00:8 aTive
va STVIW/ONILITA NA6S:11-INV00:8 2711ve FONTYFINOD YdO/VO/dL TVEOTO LT ANNL 'NOW
NOILYZIYIHSON NA6S: 1 1-INV00:8 NIHOLIN dAd 44V.1S NIHOLIN dAQ
1N0 IAON WV9-d6
FONVINYOA¥3d Wd6 — WJOE'9
JONYWIOI¥Ed NAOE:E — INd [ HdAd YTYHS 4D AVMAVOUL 9z ANAT 'NNS

110C — ATAHddM dISIAHA
HIVIFSOAHC



